

CT UK Commercial Property Feeder Fund Interim Report and Financial Statements For the period ended:

31.08.2023

Contents

Page

- 1 Directory*
- 2 Scheme Information*
- 5 Certification of Financial Statements by Directors of the Manager*
- 6 Authorised Fund Manager's Investment Report*
- 8 Portfolio Statement*
- 9 Comparative Tables

Financial Statements of CT UK Commercial Property Feeder Fund

- 10 Statement of Total Return
- 10 Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Shareholders
- 11 Balance Sheet
- 12 Notes to the Financial Statements

^{*}The Manager's Report in accordance with the Investment Management Association (IMA) SORP (2014) and the Collective Investment Schemes Sourcebook comprises those items denoted above along with the Scheme Objective, Portfolio Update, Portfolio Market Review and Outlook of the Scheme.

Directory

Scheme Information

CT UK Commercial Property Feeder Fund Exchange House Primrose Street London EC2A 2NY

Authorised Fund Manager

Columbia Threadneedle Fund Management Limited Exchange House Primrose Street London EC2A 2NY

Telephone: 0800 085 2752, Facsimile: (0207) 600 4180

The Manager is authorised and regulated in the UK by the Financial Conduct Authority and is a member of the Investment Association.

Directors of the AFM

D. Logan, W.M. Tonkin, R. Watts, T. Watts C. Porter (independent), R. Fuller (independent)

Investment Advisor

Columbia Threadneedle Management Limited Exchange House Primrose Street London EC2A 2NY

Independent Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Level 4 Atria One 144 Morrison Street Edinburgh EH3 8EX

Depositary

State Street Trustees Limited *Registered Office* 20 Churchill Place London E14 5HJ

Head Office and Principal Place of Business

Quartermile 3 10 Nightingale Way Edinburgh EH3 9EG

Fund Accounting and Unit Pricing

State Street Bank and Trust Company 20 Churchill Place London E14 5HJ

Administrator and Registrar

SS&C Financial Services Europe Limited SS&C House St Nicholas Lane Basildon Essex SS15 5FS

Legal Advisors

CMS Cameron McKenna Nabarro Olswang LLP Cannon Place 78 Cannon Street London EC4N 6AF

Scheme Information

Authorised Status

CT UK Commercial Property Feeder Fund (the 'scheme') is an Authorised Unit Trust Scheme under section 243 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000. The scheme is a stand-alone non-UCITS Retail Scheme. The scheme invests solely in the CT UK Commercial Property Fund ICVC (the "underlying fund") which was converted to a Property Authorised Investment Fund (PAIF) on 1 September 2015, and as such, its investment objective is to achieve income and capital growth through investment in shares of the underlying fund. The scheme has an unlimited duration.

Financial Statements

These financial statements are for the period 1 March 2023 to 31 August 2023.

Unitholders

The scheme is a segregated portfolio of assets and, accordingly, the assets of a scheme belong exclusively to that scheme and shall not be used to discharge directly or indirectly the liabilities of, or claims against, any other person or body, including the scheme or any other scheme and shall not be available for any such purpose. Investments of the scheme must comply with the Collective Investment Schemes sourcebook (the "COLL sourcebook").

The underlying fund adopted segregated liability status for funds on 8 June 2012. From that date the assets of one fund may not be used to satisfy the obligations of another fund.

Trust deed and Prospectus

The scheme is a stand-alone unit trust, authorised by the Financial Conduct Authority (the "FCA") with effect from 14 August 2015. The investment objectives, investment policies and investment activity reports, for the scheme are included in the financial statements. Copies of the current prospectus, and any subsequent reports are available from the Administrator.

Other Information

The scheme offers both accumulation and income units.

The operating charges for each unit class can be found in the scheme's comparative tables.

There have been no changes to the Risk Management systems during the period. Sensitivity to the most relevant risks has been assessed through a series of quantitative Risk measures, including as appropriate, tracking error and stress tests. There have been no breaches to the relevant Risk limits during the period.

Columbia Threadneedle Fund Management Limited, Manager of scheme, is authorised by the FCA as an Alternative Investment Fund Manager ("AIFM"), and appointed as such, with effect from 22 July 2014.

Requirements for compliance with the Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive in the UK are set out in the FCA Investment Funds sourcebook ("FUND"). Rule FUND 3.2.2 in this sourcebook requires certain information to be provided to prospective investors.

On 1 September 2015, the underlying fund converted to a PAIF. Under the PAIF structure, tax-exempt investors, such as those invested through an ISA, Pension Fund or SIPP, as well as charities, are exempt from paying UK tax on distributions from property related income and interest payments. Investors who do not qualify to invest directly in the PAIF are able to invest via the scheme which has the same underlying exposure to the directly held properties as the PAIF.

The interim long report for CT UK Commercial Property Feeder Fund underlying fund CT UK Commercial Property Fund is published in the 'Document centre' section of our website at https://www.columbiathreadneedle.co.uk.

Scheme Information (continued)

Report on Remuneration

This section of the annual report has been prepared in accordance with the Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive 2011/61/EC ("AIFM Directive") and the Financial Conduct Authority's Handbook (SYSC 19B: AIFM Remuneration Code).

In accordance with the AIFM Directive, Columbia Threadneedle Fund Management Limited (formerly BMO Fund Management Limited), the designated Alternative Investment Fund Manager ("AIFM") for CT UK Commercial Property Feeder Fund, has adopted a remuneration policy which is consistent with the remuneration principles applicable to AIF management companies and aligned with the Columbia Threadneedle Asset Management (EMEA) Remuneration Policy. The size of the AIFM and the size of the funds it manages, the internal organisation and the nature, the scope and the complexity of their activities have been taken into consideration in this disclosure.

Remuneration policy

The purpose of the AIFM's remuneration policy is to describe the remuneration principles and practices within the AIFM and for such principles and practices:

- a) to be consistent with, and promote, sound and effective risk management;
- b) to be in line with the business strategy, objectives, values and interests of the AIFM;
- c) not to encourage excessive risk-taking as compared to the investment policy of the relevant sub-funds of the AIFM;
- d) to provide a framework for remuneration to attract, motivate and retain staff (including directors) to which the policy applies in order to achieve the objectives of the AIFM; and
- e) to ensure that any relevant conflicts of interest can be managed appropriately at all times.

Decision making and governance

The board of directors (the "Board") of the AIFM is responsible for the remuneration policy of the AIFM and for determining the remuneration of the directors of the AIFM and other staff who undertake professional activities for the AIFM. The Board has delegated to the Risk and Remuneration Committee (the "Committee") of Columbia Threadneedle Asset Management (Holdings) plc responsibility for maintaining a compliant remuneration policy. The Committee solely comprises non-executive directors of Columbia Threadneedle Asset Management (Holdings) plc. The Board has adopted the remuneration policy applicable to all members of the Group ("Columbia Threadneedle Asset Management (EMEA)") for this financial year as reviewed and approved by the Committee periodically (at least annually). The Committee is responsible for, and oversees, the implementation of the remuneration policy in line with the AIFMD Regulations. The Board considers that the members of the Committee have appropriate expertise in risk management and remuneration to perform this review.

Applicability

The remuneration policy, which incorporates compliance with AIFMD requirements, applies to staff whose professional activities have a material impact on the risk profile of the AIFM or of the funds it manages ("Identified Staff") and so covers:

- a) senior management;
- b) risk takers;
- c) control functions; and
- d) employees receiving total remuneration that takes them into the same remuneration bracket as senior management and risk takers, whose professional activities have a material impact on the risk profile of the AIFM.

The Identified Staff list and the selection criteria above are subject to regular review (at least annually) by the Committee as well as formally reviewed in the event of significant organisation changes and changes in remuneration regulations the AIFM is subject to.

Scheme Information (continued)

Linking remuneration with performance

The AIFM's remuneration policy is part of the Columbia Threadneedle Asset Management (EMEA) framework for promoting sound remuneration management, with the objective of providing total compensation to its employees that is warranted by corporate, business unit/function and individual performance and is comparable to market competitors, whilst being consistent with and promoting sound and effective risk management and the achievement of fair outcomes for all customers. Its purpose is to facilitate achievement of the business objectives and corporate values of the AIFM, with the primary focus on clients, whilst ensuring that Columbia Threadneedle Asset Management (EMEA) is able to attract, retain and motivate the key talent required to achieve these business objectives and corporate values without incentivising excessive or inappropriate risk.

When setting remuneration levels, the following components and principles form part of the remuneration management framework:

- Fixed remuneration is determined taking into account factors including the requirements of the particular role and the staff member's
 experience, expertise, contribution level and the fixed pay for comparable roles. Fixed remuneration is set, with reference to market data, at a
 level that is sufficient to attract high calibre staff as well as to permit the operation of a fully-flexible remuneration policy (including the
 possibility of a staff member receiving reduced or no variable remuneration in a particular year). The Committee keeps the balance between
 fixed and variable remuneration under review.
- Variable remuneration is determined annually by reference to both financial and non-financial AIFM performance considerations. External
 competitor practices are included in the funding review to ensure compensation opportunities in the markets within which the AIFM operates
 are given due consideration and retention risks are effectively managed. Incentive funding is developed in view of current and projected
 economics and risks, supported by Columbia Threadneedle Asset Management (EMEA) Risk and Compliance Committee inputs, ensuring riskadjustments and qualitative and quantitative considerations, such as the cost and quantity of capital and liquidity are actively considered as
 funding adjustments. The Committee ensures that all incentive awards are not paid through vehicles or methods that facilitate the avoidance
 of the requirements with regard to remuneration imposed by applicable law and/or regulations.
- Variable remuneration is allocated to respective business functions by reference to:
 - contribution of the respective business function or unit to corporate performance;
 - business function performance relative to pre-determined targets and objectives, including adherence to risk management obligations; and
 - competitive market pay data.

Individual award allocations are referenced to the individual achievement during the performance year relative to pre-agreed objectives and assessment of market comparability. Performance is assessed in relation to pre-agreed objectives, which include financial and non-financial goals (including the achievement of fair customer outcomes), compliance with the Group's policies and procedures, adherence to risk management and compliance requirements and the Group's Code of Conduct. The assessment of performance for Identified Staff reflects multi-year performance in a manner appropriate to the life-cycle of the funds that are managed by the AIFM.

Application of Financial Conduct Authority's Handbook (SYSC 19B: AIFMD Remuneration Code) pay-out process rules, save for disapplication
at individual or AIFM level, which is determined by an annual proportionality assessment.

Certification of Financial Statements by Directors of the Manager

This report contains the information required by the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) for Financial Statements of Authorised Funds issued in May 2014 and the Collective Investment Schemes sourcebook, in the case of interim financial statements and was approved for publication on 27 October 2023.

Director
On behalf of Columbia Threadneedle Fund Management Limited
Manager
27 October 2023

Authorised Fund Manager's Investment Report

for the period 1 March 2023 to 31 August 2023 (unaudited)

Scheme Objective

The scheme aims to achieve a return combining capital growth and income over the long term (5-7 years).

The scheme will invest all or substantially all of its assets in the feeder accumulation shares of the CT UK Commercial Property Fund ICVC. To the extent the scheme is not fully invested in the CT UK Commercial Property Fund ICVC, the scheme will hold its remaining assets in cash.

Investment, by the underlying fund, may also be made in property related securities, transferable securities including government and corporate fixed interest securities, collective investment schemes, money market instruments, deposits and derivatives.

Derivatives may be used, in the underlying fund, for investment purposes as well as for efficient portfolio management.

While a significant proportion of the underlying fund's portfolio will normally be held in direct Scheme size property assets, the actual proportion will depend on the availability of properties on acceptable terms and the expected support from investors. Except in exceptional circumstances, the Manager does not expect less than 80% of the underlying fund's assets to be invested directly in property.



Scheme manager Guy Glover & Emma Gullifer

Scheme size

£172.0million

Launch date 1 September 2015

Portfolio Update of the underlying fund

All-property total returns were 1.5% for the 6 months to August 2023, according to the MSCI UK Monthly Index. Positive returns were primarily supported by stronger performance from industrial and logistics and retail warehousing assets, while poorer sentiment impact values in the offices sector acted as a drag on overall returns.

Increased cost of debt has been impacting values, particularly in sectors with a greater perceived lending risk such as offices. Finance rates however dropped back in July, partially reversing the sustained trend higher, reflecting inflation and interest rate expectations. Spreads remain significantly below long run averages (20-year average c4.1%), which is placing increasing forward-looking pressure on leverage.

The positive performance from all-property was primarily driven by industrial assets and retail warehousing, which delivered 4.5% and 4.7% total return respectively over the period. The occupational market in industrial and logistics remains robust, with positive rental growth still coming through, albeit at more muted levels than in the previous couple of years. Retail warehousing continues to offer resilience, supported by robust occupational demand, rebased rents and a healthy income return, while high street retail and shopping centres remain more challenged. Office assets delivered the weakest performance at -5.7% as values have been impacted by poor investor sentiment and a reflection of the uncertainty over future office occupational trends and capital expenditure requirements in the sector. The all-property annual income return was 2.7% in the six months to August 2023.

Property Market Review of the underlying fund

The CT UK Commercial Property Fund ICVC The Company's property portfolio produced an ungeared total return of 5.7% over the 6 months to August 2023. The property portfolio has delivered an ungeared total return of 6.4% per cent per annum on a three-year annualised basis, and 4.1% on a five-year annualised basis. At 31st August 2023 the value of the property portfolio was £184m, below the value of the portfolio in February 2023 when the value of the portfolio stood at £201.7m. However, the decline in value reflects the sale of two assets over the period, Royal Mail, Hatfield and B&Q, Buxton. On a like-for-like basis the value of the property portfolio has increased from £178.3m in February 2023 thanks to a recovery in values across the Fund's industrial and logistics assets.

The Manager has been focused on driving performance from the existing portfolio with rent reviews, re-gears and lease renewals. Following a comprehensive refurbishment, achieving an EPC A+, the Fund's asset in Trafford Park, Manchester was let on a new 15-year lease at a rent 50% ahead of the previous rent passing, while a new 15-year lease was also secured at the Fund's asset in Newcastle-under-Lyme at a rent 38% ahead of the previous rent passing. An agreement for lease has been signed subject to change-of-use planning at the Fund's asset in Richmond to convert the asset from an office to a boutique pub.

At the sector level, the portfolio's Industrial assets delivered the most resilient performance, producing total returns of 15.0% from the Rest of UK industrials and 7.8% from South East industrials over the 6 months to August. The Fund's office assets, now representing 11.7% of the portfolio, delivered the weakest performance at -5.0% as asset pricing reflected the ongoing uncertainty over future occupational trends and capital expenditure requirements facing this sector.

All of the best performing assets were in the Industrial sector. Industrial and logistics assets saw a recovery in values over the period following some outward yield movement in Q4 2022 as a result of rising debt costs. The performance of the Fund's industrial assets was boosted further by the completion of asset management initiatives such as new lettings at Newcastle-under-Lyme and Manchester, and rent reviews being settled or negotiated at Avonmouth, Birmingham and Leeds.

Authorised Fund Manager's Investment Report

(continued)

for the period 1 March 2023 to 31 August 2023 (unaudited)

The portfolio's poorest performing assets are mostly in the retail warehouse and office sectors. While generally the Retail Warehouse sector remains resilient, the Fund's assets in Bournemouth and Romford and undergoing some asset management that requires capital expenditure, hence the impact on performance in the short term while these initiatives complete. The Fund's office assets at High Wycombe and Bath have been impacted by negative sentiment towards the Office sector, particularly as these assets have some vacancy and require future capital expenditure to achieve required environmental standards. Since the period end, the Fund's office asset in Bath has been sold and the asset in High Wycombe is on the market for sale.

The portfolio benefits from a relatively low void rate of 6.7% and weighted unexpired lease term of around 6.8 years, secured primarily to low risk corporate tenants are all good defensive characteristics, and leave the portfolio well placed to deliver on the Company's objective. The portfolio offers a relatively high exposure to industrial and logistics property at around 63% of total property assets, and to the wider South/South East (69% per cent of assets by value), sectors and geographies supported by continued strong tenant demand, and constrained supply-side dynamics.

Outlook

Overall investment volumes in H1 2023 were down 27.0% against H2 2022 as the cost of debt and the uncertainty over pricing continued to deter buyers and sellers. Interest rates and the high cost of debt have fed into the capital value declines seen over the course of the last six months, but at a slower pace than the falls seen over the last six months of 2022. The cost of debt has added a further layer of caution to lender underwriting, creating challenges for any borrowers needing to refinance. Some existing lenders with exposure to real estate are still lending against the asset class but on a more selective basis and at generally lower loan-to-value ratios.

The second half of 2022 was marked by a period of illiquidity and pricing discovery amidst a rapid repricing of the UK commercial real estate market, which saw equivalent yields at the all-property level move out by 116 basis points over six months. While pricing continued to adjust over the first half of 2023 it was at a much slower rate with the all-property equivalent yield moving out by 18 basis points. Prices should begin to stabilise towards the end of 2023, but this will not be uniform across sectors, and is very closely linked to the trajectory of interest rates and subject to no further macroeconomic or geopolitical surprises. A slow pick-up in investment volumes is expected but given the subdued first six months the annual trading volume will be some way off the long-run average. The wait-and-see stance adopted by some investors will be maintained while others will be in a position where they need to release capital, possibly to satisfy redemptions.

The recovery, when it comes, will be uneven in terms of investor focus and appetite for sectors and geographies. Logistics and the operational areas of the living sector will be of interest as well as parts of the retail sector such as retail warehousing. Whatever the outcome, the overarching trend will be for a widening gap between good quality stock either ESG credential ready or the ability to upcycle stock and enhance ESG metrics, versus secondary quality assets and secondary locations that will continue to struggle, with some stock challenged with obsolesce.

There is a clear focus on asset management initiatives and income returns, rather than capital growth, will be the key driver of commercial real estate returns over at least the remainder of the year and probably into the early part of 2024. Over the year, the MSCI Index reported an income return of 4.5%. Whilst the occupier market has been somewhat surprisingly resilient, given the continued squeeze on corporate margins, the financial health of occupiers is paramount to protect real estate income streams. Real estate sectors will differ in performance in relation to the wider market environment with areas seeing positive rental growth, most notably the logistics sector along with retail warehouses.

Columbia Threadneedle Fund Management Limited 3 October 2023

Portfolio Statement

as at 31 August 2023 (unaudited)

	Holdings	Market Value £000	Total Net Assets %
COLLECTIVE INVESTMENT SCHEMES (99.56%*) CT UK Commercial Property Fund ICVC**	273,053,569	171,465 171,465	99.68 99.68
Portfolio of investments		171,465	99.68
Net other assets		550	0.32
Total net assets		172,015	100.00

^{*} Comparative figures shown in brackets relate to 28 February 2023.

** The scheme invests solely in the share class F of CT UK Commercial Property Fund ICVC.

Comparative Tables

as at 31 August 2023 (unaudited)			
	31/08/23	28/02/23	28/02/22
Unit Class 1 - Accumulation			
Closing net asset value (£'000)	7,449	10,348	6,810
Closing number of shares	5,272,302	7,609,755	4,437,857
Closing net asset value per share (p)	141.28	135.99	153.46
Operating charges#	1.63%	1.60%	1.60%
Property expenses##	0.80%	0.20%	0.30%
Real estate expense ratio###	2.43%	1.80%	1.90%
	31/08/23	28/02/23	28/02/22
Unit Class 1 - Income			
Closing net asset value (£'000)	210	281	181
Closing number of shares	203,380	278,458	155,209
Closing net asset value per share (p)	103.53	100.88	116.27
Operating charges#	1.63%	1.60%	1.59%
Property expenses##	0.80%	0.20%	0.30%
Real estate expense ratio###	2.43%	1.80%	1.89%
	31/08/23	28/02/23	28/02/22
Unit Class 2 - Accumulation			
Closing net asset value (£'000)	140,967	151,774	172,148
Closing number of shares	186,393,841	209,141,937	211,453,324
Closing net asset value per share (p)	75.63	72.57	81.41
Operating charges#	0.88%	0.85%	0.85%
Property expenses##	0.80%	0.20%	0.30%
Real estate expense ratio###	1.68%	1.05%	1.15%
	31/08/23	28/02/23	28/02/22
Unit Class 2 - Income			
Closing net asset value (£'000)	23,389	27,595	36,290
Closing number of shares	22,701,266	27,489,359	31,359,437
Closing net asset value per share (p)	103.03	100.38	115.72
Operating charges#	0.88%	0.85%	0.85%
Property expenses##	0.80%	0.20%	0.30%
Real estate expense ratio###	1.68%	1.05%	1.15%

[#] Operating charges are expenses associated with the maintenance and administration of the Fund on a day-to-day basis that are actually borne by the unit class.

^{##} Property expenses reflects any additional costs associated with the day-to-day operation of the direct property assets and is presented as a percentage of average net assets over the period.

^{###} Real estate expense ratio represents the aggregate charges of the CT UK Commercial Property Feeder Fund and its qualifying master scheme CT UK Commercial Property Fund.

Statement of Total Return

for the period 1 March 2023 to 31 August 2023 (unaudited)

	01/03/23 to 31/08/23		01/03/22 to 31/08/22	
	£000	£000	£000	£000
Income				
Net capital gains/(losses)		4,634		(1,456)
Revenue	4,118		3,803	
Expenses	(760)		(923)	
Interest payable and similar charges		_	-	
Net revenue before taxation	3,358		2,880	
Taxation	(615)	_	(517)	
Net revenue after taxation		2,743		2,363
Total return before distributions		7,377		907
Distributions		(2,743)		(2,363)
Change in net assets attributable to shareholders from investment activities		4,634	_	(1,456)

Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Shareholders

for the period 1 March 2023 to 31 August 2023 (unaudited)				
	01/03/23 to 31/08/23		01/03/22 to 31/08/22	
	£000	£000	£000	£000
Opening net assets attributable to shareholders		189,998		215,429
Amounts receivable on creation of shares	3,492		28,992	
Amounts payable on cancellation of shares	(28,305)		(16,618)	
		(24,813)		12,374
Change in net assets attributable to shareholders from investment activities		4,634		(1,456)
Retained distribution on accumulation shares		2,196		2,046
Closing net assets attributable to shareholders		172,015		228,393

Comparative information is provided for the Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Shareholders. Since this information is for the prior interim period, the net assets at the end of that period do not correspond to the net assets at the start of the current period.

Balance Sheet

as at 31 August 2023 (unaudited)		_
	31/08/23 £000	28/02/23 £000
Assets		
Investments	171,465	189,162
Current assets		
Debtors	4,021	3,137
Cash and bank balances	274	665
Total assets	175,760_	192,964
Liabilities		
Provisions for liabilities	(632)	(543)
Creditors		
Distribution payable	(357)	(448)
Other creditors	(2,756)	(1,975)
Total liabilities	(3,745)	(2,966)
Net assets attributable to shareholders	<u>172,015</u>	189,998

Notes to the Financial Statements

Accounting Policies

The interim financial statements for the Fund have been prepared on the same basis as the audited financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2023. They are in accordance with the historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of investments, and the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) for Financial Statements of Authorised Funds issued by the Investment Management Association (IMA) in May 2014 (the IMA SORP 2014), and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.